
1

The Planning Board of the Village of Montebello held a meeting on Tuesday, July 13, 2010 at the
Montebello Community Center, 350 Haverstraw Road, Montebello, New York. Chairman Rubin called
the meeting to order at 7:20 p.m. and led everyone in the Pledge of Allegiance.

PRESENT OTHERS

Al Rubin, Chairman Ira Emanuel, Assistant Village Attorney
Jane Burke, Member Robert Geneslaw, Village Planner
Michael Iatropoulos, Member Martin Spence, Village Engineer
Anthony Caridi, Member Gloria Scalisi, Planning & Zoning Clerk
Thomas Ternquist, Member
Melanie Golden, Member

Member Iatropoulos made a motion to approve the minutes of May 11, 2010, seconded by Member
Ternquist. Upon vote, the motion carried unanimously.

Member Iatropoulos made a motion to approve the minutes of June 8, 2010, seconded by Member
Ternquist. Upon vote, the motion carried unanimously.

6 River Road – Public Hearing
Wetlands Permit

Application of Carole A. Van Hook, 5 East Gate Road, Montebello, New York 10901, for
Approval of a Wetlands Permit entitled “6 River Road” to allow disturbance and
construction within 100 feet of a freshwater wetland. The proposed disturbance is on
approximately 2000 square feet with 167 cubic yards of fill. A NYSDEC permit has been
obtained. The subject property is located on the westerly side of River Road approximately
300 feet south of Victory Road in the Village of Montebello, which is known and
designated on the Ramapo Tax Map as Section 48.14, Block 1, Lot 19 in an R-35 Zone.

Mrs. Carole Van Hook was in attendance along with the Applicant’s Engineer, Mr. Stuart Strow, from
Centerpoint Engineering.

Mr. Strow stated that they attended the June 29, 2010 CDRC meeting and as a result from that meeting
they have made some additional revisions to their plan. Mr. Strow declared that they have now added a
retaining wall along the rear of the property which is approximately 2-1/2 to 3 feet high. The retaining
wall goes along the entire rear of the proposed structure. Mr. Strow stated that the purpose of the retaining
wall is to reduce fill in the amount of approximately 37 cubic yards which further reduces fill in the
floodplain. The floodplain volume is now reduced by 0.02% between Mayer Drive and Montebello Road.
The retaining wall also serves a purpose of saving additional trees.

Mr. Strow stated that since the last Planning Board meeting they conducted soil tests and the results were
better that what they had anticipated.

Mr. Strow summarized the application and stated that they have been very responsive to the comments
and concerns of the Board, the Professionals and even the Neighbors. Mr. Strow stated that they have
submitted detailed engineering analysis that shows that there will not be any significant impact to the
floodplain from this particular project. Mr. Strow pointed out that they removed the garage from the 100
foot buffer. The applicant has also reduced the amount of fill. Mr. Strow also received New York State



2

DEC approval for this project and all documentation has been submitted to the Board. Mr. Strow stated
that they strongly believe they have met all the requirements for approval.  The project proposed is within
the character of the neighborhood and similar to the surrounding houses in size and location on the lot.
Mr. Strow strongly stated that this project is ready for approval.

Chairman Rubin asked the Village Engineer, Martin Spence to read and go over his memo, dated July 12,
2010 (copy attached).

Mr. Spence stated that his memo is an update of previous submittals and meetings. Mr. Spence stated that
at the CDRC meeting they had discussed various methods of reducing the fill within the floodplain of the
Mahwah River. Mr. Spence stated that they had explored everything from having an open cellar
constructed on masonry piers or foundation walls with openings to allow flood waters to flow through.
Mr. Spence also discussed minimizing the grading of the rear yard by placing a wall that would provide
the change in grade in near dramatic sense that would result in less fill being placed within the floodplain.

Mr. Spence agreed with the applicant that 5 additional trees would be saved with the addition of the
retaining wall.

Mr. Spence further discussed and reviewed his memo dated July 12, 2010.

Mr. Spence stated that the applicant agreed to the Engineering comment S-6 to provide a double row of
silt fencing at the limits of disturbance with a minimum 3 foot separation.

Chairman Rubin made a motion to open the Public Hearing.

Kathryn Gorman, 83 Lackawanna Trail, Montebello, New York complemented the Planning Board on all
their hard work and diligence with a project that is environmentally sensitive. Ms. Gorman stated that she
has read the minutes of the previous meetings and feels that the applicant, Mrs. Van Hook has also done
her due diligence to mitigate the impact of this project.

Mary Galasso, 325 Haverstraw Road, Montebello, New York questioned the Board if the application is
granted will there be restrictions on grading and clearing within the wetland buffer and has the Board
considered reorienting the house to keep it out of the buffer. Mrs. Galasso pointed out that there are
several houses in the area that are sideways to the street.

Chairman Rubin answered Mrs. Galasso’s questions by stating that most of the property is in the 100 year
floodplain so therefore reorienting the house will not change anything. Mr. Spence stated that the house is
outside the wetland buffer but there is fill in the wetland buffer.

Paul Galasso, 325 Haverstraw Road, Montebello, New York questioned the applicant on the requirement
of flood insurance. Mr. Strow replied that once the structure is built with fill, the first floor elevation will
be outside of the flood zone and therefore insurance is for the structure not the property.

Mr. Galasso asked if there has been a feasibility study done to determine the environmental impact of this
application and if it is done with the DEC.



3

Chairman Rubin replied that the applicant is before the Planning Board because of the Village’s
regulations regarding what can take place within the 100 year floodplain. The Applicant has already
received approval from the DEC.

Chairman Rubin summarized by stating that most of the property is in the flood plain and the area has
exhibited significant flooding from the Mahwah River in recent years as attested to from some of the
neighbors. The elevations proposed have significant impact on bringing fill. Building a retaining wall will
further reduce the amount of fill to be brought in. Chairman Rubin stated that the area is sensitive to
flooding and can benefit from a further reduction in the fill. Chairman Rubin would also like to see a tree
plan submitted for the re-establishment of trees removed. Chairman Rubin stated that any steps taken are
positive steps toward protecting the environment.

Member Burke questioned the start and end of the fill on the map submitted and also wanted to know
what kind of fill is proposed. Mr. Strow clarified that the dashed line is the limit of the fill and the fill
being used is clean fill.

Chairman Rubin would like the resolution to stipulate the quality of the fill.

Carole Van Hook, 5 East Gate Road, Montebello, New York stated that she and her husband have taken
the time to walk the property to try and save as many trees as possible and the addition of the retaining
wall will save five to seven additional trees. Mrs. Van Hook stated that on the submitted revised map the
shed is proposed to be shifted over to meet the setback requirements. Mrs. Van Hook stated that the test
pit results show a 5 minute per inch with the best number available for design purposes and reveal
permeable sand and gravel mix, no groundwater or bedrock was encountered up to nine feet.  Mrs. Van
Hook stated that this lot has been in existence since 1956, taxes have been paid accordingly and they have
a right to build on the lot.

Chairman Rubin stated that everyone has a right to build but the Planning Board has to weigh those rights
against any negative impacts to the Village.

Member Iatropoulos questioned the Applicant on the quantitative value of the fill reduction. “What Kind
of impact did it buy?” Member Iatropoulos asked if there could be a formula that could be used to
mitigate the negative impact to the downstream neighbor.

Chairman Rubin asked the Applicant to try to reduce the amount of fill even further.

Mr. Strow replied that at this point they feel they reduced it as much as they could go and still build a
house in the character of the neighborhood. Mr. Strow stated that the numbers being picked are arbitrary
numbers and if it was supposed to be a negotiation he would have started with a higher number like 500
cubic yards of fill and negotiated down to 250. Mr. Strow stated that what is proposed is what is required
for a realistically sized house.

Chairman Rubin asked the applicant how many square feet is the house.

Mr. Strow replied that the house is 4500 square feet at its largest and the house does not have a basement.

Chairman Rubin does not agree that this house conforms to the characteristic of the neighborhood and
there is an opportunity to reduce the footprint of the house which reduces the amount of fill required.



4

Member Ternquist asked the Village Engineer what the relationship between the reduction of fill and the
impact of the environment.

Mr. Spence replied that a smaller house requires a smaller amount of fill and therefore will have a lesser
impact to flood storage volume.

Brian Morese, 4 River Road, Montebello, New York feels that this is a spec house for Mrs. Van Hook and
that the applicant does not care about the surrounding property or the quality of life of the surrounding
people. Mr. Morese stated that Mrs. Van Hook’s only objective is to make money on this project.

Sean DeGaetini, 4 River Road, Montebello, New York questioned the impact to 4 River Road and 8 River
Road when rain hits the property in between that has been elevated. Mr. DeGaetini feels the only results
will be flooding to the adjacent properties.

Mr. Strow stated that he is a professional engineer and the Board has received professional opinions on
the impact to the neighboring properties.

Mr. DeGaetini stated that he may get his own professional engineer.

Mr. Strow stated that they have proposed the minimum amount of fill to build a house that is in the
character of the neighborhood. Engineering studies were submitted that showed there was no increase in
flood elevation to the surrounding areas as a result of this project and it also included the installation of a
drywell which is meant to offset the runoff to the surrounding areas.

Mr. Strow stated that they have responded to the Village Engineer and have done what he has asked them
to do.

Mr. Spence replied that at the CDRC meeting he and the other professionals suggested possible ways to
design the structure such as open crawl spaces and other suggestions. Mr. Spence stated that they were not
recommendations the design is not his.

Member Iatropoulos made a motion to continue the Public Hearing for a Wetland Permit for “6 River Road”
until the next scheduled Planning Board meeting on August 10, 2010, seconded by Member Ternquist.
Upon vote, the motion carried unanimously.

Wehman-Bambace
Amended Lot Line Change

Application of Gina Wehman, 3 Lake Road, Montebello, New York 10901 and Christine
Macnaughton, 1 Lake Road, Montebello, New York 10901, for an approval of a second 90
day final filing extension of a Lot Line Change Subdivision. The subject property is
located on the East  side of Orchard Street at the intersection with the North side of Lake
Road in the Village of Montebello, which is known and designated on the Ramapo Tax
Map as Section 48.17, Block 1, Lots 25 & 26 in a R25 Zone. The Applicants received
Final Approval on September 8, 2009 and a first 90 day extension on April 13, 2010. The
second 90 day extension will expire on September 4, 2010.

Mr. James Licata and Mr. John Atzl, the applicant’s attorney and engineer, are in attendance. Mr. Licata
stated that this application was previously before this Board in September 2009. Since that time the



5

neighbors have moved into the house and have asked for an easement to use the driveway. Mr. Licata
stated that they are friendly with the current neighbors but one doesn’t know about the future.

The Village Planner, Mr. Robert Geneslaw, read the minutes from the June 29, 2010 CDRC meeting
(Copy attached). Mr. Geneslaw stated that there was only one comment from the meeting and that was
“Proposal appears to have no engineering or planning implications.”

Chairman Rubin recognizes the minor change to the lot line is for utilization of the driveway.

Member Burke asked what happens to the map.

Mr. Licata stated that the engineer has prepared a new map with the changes and the old map was never
filed. Mr. Atzl replied that note #26 has to be amended to read “no new construction, removal of any trees
is permitted.”

Member Iatropoulos made a motion to close the Public Hearing for an Amended Lot Line Change of
Wehman-Bambace, seconded by Member Caridi. Upon vote, the motion carried unanimously.

Mr. Ira Emanuel, Assistant Village Attorney, stated that from a SEQRA point of view the Board
originally made a negative declaration. Chairman Rubin declared the Negative Declaration still stands.

Mr. Ira Emanuel, Assistant Village Attorney, read the Resolution into the record:

RESOLUTION PB-01 OF 2010
Granting Amendment of an Approved Subdivision Entitled

“Wehman-Bambace”

WHEREAS, an application has been made by Gina Wehman and Christine MacNaughton for
amendment of an approved, but not-yet filed subdivision plat entitled “Wehman-Bambace” affecting
premises designated as Section  48.17, Block 1, Lot 25 and 26 on the Tax Map of the Town of Ramapo,
which was originally approved by this Board on September 8, 2009; and

WHEREAS, said approval included a condition of this Board (Condition 3) requiring that a
macadam patio that had been connected to the driveway for the Wehman parcel (Lot 2) be separated and
that landscaping be planted to enforce such separation; and

WHEREAS, the applicants seek to amend the plat by removing said condition and by allowing the
MacNaughton parcel (Lot 1) to retain vehicular access to Lake Road by means of an easement over the
said driveway; and

WHEREAS, no other changes to the approved plat are requested; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to the New York State Environmental Quality Review Act, a negative
declaration was issued by this Board on September 8, 2009; and

WHEREAS, necessary variances were granted for tax lot 48.17-1-26 by the Zoning Board of
Appeals at that Board's meeting of April 29, 2009; and



6

WHEREAS, on August 6, 2009, the Rockland County Planning Department recommended
modifications the proposed final plat; and

WHEREAS, as a result of this amendment, there will be no physical changes to the subject
parcels; and

WHEREAS, a public hearing was held on July 13, 2010.

NOW, THEREFORE, be it

RESOLVED, that since no new lots are to be created by the proposed subdivision, this Board
waives the requirement for preliminary approval; and be it further

RESOLVED, that the plat entitled “Wehman-Bambace” dated June 9, 2010,  affecting premises
designated as Section 48.17, Block 1, Lot 25 and 26 on the Tax Map of the Town of Ramapo, be and
hereby is approved, and the Chairman is hereby authorized to sign same and to permit same to be filed in
the office of the Rockland County Clerk, upon payment of any and all outstanding fees to the Village of
Montebello, subject to the following:

1.  Rockland County Planning Department conditions as stated in its memorandum dated August
6, 2009.

2.   All conditions of the variances granted by the Zoning Board of Appeals.

3.  As there is no new construction proposed, nor is a new lot being created, this subdivision will
not affect the park and recreation needs of the Village, and therefore no contribution of land, or money in
lieu of land, for park and recreation purposes is required.

4.  Note 26 to read “No new construction or removal of trees is permitted.”

5.  Signature of the Chairman of the Rockland County Drainage Agency pursuant to the
requirements of section 13-A of the Rockland County Stream Control Act (L. 1975, Ch. 846, as
amended).

MOTION: Member Iatropoulos

SECOND: Member Caridi

Upon vote, the Resolution carried unanimously.

Review and comment on Proposed Local Law amending Chapter 65 of the Code of the Village of
Montebello relating to the reimbursement of professional fees for certain land use applications.

After a brief discussion of the Proposed Local Law the Planning Board was unanimously in favor of the
Proposed Local Law amending Chapter 65 of the Code of the Village of Montebello relating to the
reimbursement of professional fees for certain land use applications.



7

New Business

Chairman Rubin stated that Member Jane Burke has graciously accepted the appointment of Vice Chairman
of the Planning Board.

Brief discussion on Zoning Amendments.

The Planning Board had a brief discussion on the closing procedures of site plans and subdivisions.

Member Iatropoulos made a motion to adjourn the meeting, seconded by Member Ternquist. Upon vote,
the motion carried unanimously. The meeting adjourned at 9.05 p.m.

Appendix:



8



9



10



11


